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MEMORANDUM

	To:
	Members of the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education 

	From:	
	Pedro Martinez, Commissioner

	Date:	
	December 9, 2025

	Subject:
	Commissioner’s Priorities


[bookmark: TO][bookmark: FROM][bookmark: DATE][bookmark: RE]

2

At the December 16, 2025 meeting of the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (Board), I will share my draft priorities for the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (Department or DESE) that will guide a new 5-Year Strategic Plan.
Since becoming Commissioner, I have been participating in a listening tour across the Commonwealth, engaging internal and external stakeholders to determine the current state of education in Massachusetts and the most impactful ways that DESE can support our schools and districts in improving student learning and achievement.
I plan to maintain the current DESE Educational Vision and Strategic Objectives, which provide a strong foundation for our work. I am proposing six key priorities that require deeper investment of staff time, resources, and policy focus across DESE and the Commonwealth. These six priorities are:
· Power of Presence: increasing student attendance and engagement
· Literacy Launch: strengthening evidence-based early literacy practices
· Future Focused: expanding college and career pathways
· Inclusive Impact: strengthening evidence-based practices for students with disabilities and English learners
· Teach Tomorrow: building a robust teacher pipeline
· Accelerating Achievement: providing comprehensive support for low–performing schools
I will continue to engage stakeholders through winter 2026 to further develop these priorities and additional strategies. This stakeholder engagement will inform a draft of a 5-Year Strategic Plan that I intend to present to the Board this spring. 
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